

SENATE JOURNAL
 Sixty-third General Assembly
STATE OF COLORADO
 Second Regular Session

Twenty-eighth Legislative Day Tuesday, February 5, 2002

Prayer By the chaplain, Reverend James Peters, New Hope Baptist Church, Denver.

Call to Order By the President at 9:00 a.m.

Roll Call Present--Total, 34.
 Absent/Excused--Tate--Total, 1.
 Present later--Tate.

Quorum The President announced a quorum present.

Reading of Journal On motion of Senator Takis, reading of the Journal of Monday, February 4, was dispensed with and the Journal was approved as corrected by the Secretary.

SENATE SERVICES REPORT

Senate Services Correctly engrossed: SB02-004, 006, 032, 037, 040.

Correctly reengrossed: SB02-028, 072, 108.

**THIRD READING--FINAL PASSAGE OF BILLS--
 CONSENT CALENDAR**

On Third Reading, the title of the following bill was publicly read, the reading at length having been dispensed with by unanimous consent:

SB02-037 by Senator Anderson; also Representative Williams T.--Concerning repeal of the state crime victim compensation fund, and, in connection therewith, repealing all requirements related to the state crime victim compensation fund.

The question being "Shall the bill pass?", the roll was called with the following result

YES	34	NO	0	EXCUSED	1	ABSENT	0
Anderson	Y	Fitz-Gerald	Y	May	Y	Takis	Y
Andrews	Y	Gordon	Y	McElhany	Y	Tate	E
Arnold	Y	Hagedorn	Y	Musgrave	Y	Taylor	Y
Cairns	Y	Hanna	Y	Nichol	Y	Teck	Y
Chlouber	Y	Hernandez	Y	Owen	Y	Thiebaut	Y
Dyer	Y	Hillman	Y	Pascoe	Y	Tupa	Y
Entz	Y	Isgar	Y	Perlmutter	Y	Windels	Y
Epps	Y	Lamborn	Y	Phillips	Y	Mr. President	Y
Evans	Y	Linkhart	Y	Reeves	Y		

A majority of all members elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the bill was declared **passed**.

THIRD READING--FINAL PASSAGE OF BILLS

On Third Reading, the titles of the following bills were publicly read, the reading at length having been dispensed with by unanimous consent:

SB02-032 by Senator Teck; also Representative Berry--Concerning the extension of the period that a portion of municipal taxes may be allocated to a special fund to pay indebtedness related to a downtown development authority.

The question being "Shall the bill pass?", the roll was called with the following result:

SB02-032

YES	29	NO	5	EXCUSED	1	ABSENT	0
Anderson	Y	Fitz-Gerald	N	May	Y	Takis	Y
Andrews	Y	Gordon	Y	McElhany	Y	Tate	E
Arnold	Y	Hagedorn	Y	Musgrave	Y	Taylor	Y
Cairns	N	Hanna	Y	Nichol	N	Teck	Y
Chlouber	Y	Hernandez	Y	Owen	Y	Thiebaut	Y
Dyer	Y	Hillman	Y	Pascoe	Y	Tupa	N
Entz	Y	Isgar	Y	Perlmutter	Y	Windels	Y
Epps	Y	Lamborn	Y	Phillips	N	Mr. President	Y
Evans	Y	Linkhart	Y	Reeves	Y		

A majority of all members elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the bill was declared **passed**.

Co-sponsors added: Chlouber, Entz, Taylor.

SB02-004

by Senator Isgar; also Representative Larson--Concerning the ability to allow the liquor industry to provide financial assistance to an institution of higher education that holds a liquor license.

The question being "Shall the bill pass?", the roll was called with the following result:

YES	34	NO	1	EXCUSED	0	ABSENT	0
Anderson	Y	Fitz-Gerald	Y	May	N	Takis	Y
Andrews	Y	Gordon	Y	McElhany	Y	Tate	Y
Arnold	Y	Hagedorn	Y	Musgrave	Y	Taylor	Y
Cairns	Y	Hanna	Y	Nichol	Y	Teck	Y
Chlouber	Y	Hernandez	Y	Owen	Y	Thiebaut	Y
Dyer	Y	Hillman	Y	Pascoe	Y	Tupa	Y
Entz	Y	Isgar	Y	Perlmutter	Y	Windels	Y
Epps	Y	Lamborn	Y	Phillips	Y	Mr. President	Y
Evans	Y	Linkhart	Y	Reeves	Y		

A majority of all members elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the bill was declared **passed**.

Co-sponsors added: Fitz-Gerald, Hernandez, Phillips, Tate, Taylor, Tupa, Windels.

SB02-040

by Senator Pascoe; also Representative Stafford--Concerning the safety of children's products.

The question being "Shall the bill pass?", the roll was called with the following result:

YES	23	NO	12	EXCUSED	0	ABSENT	0
Anderson	N	Fitz-Gerald	Y	May	N	Takis	Y
Andrews	N	Gordon	Y	McElhany	N	Tate	Y
Arnold	N	Hagedorn	Y	Musgrave	N	Taylor	Y
Cairns	N	Hanna	Y	Nichol	Y	Teck	N
Chlouber	Y	Hernandez	Y	Owen	N	Thiebaut	Y
Dyer	N	Hillman	N	Pascoe	Y	Tupa	Y
Entz	Y	Isgar	Y	Perlmutter	Y	Windels	Y
Epps	Y	Lamborn	N	Phillips	Y	Mr. President	Y
Evans	Y	Linkhart	Y	Reeves	Y		

A majority of all members elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the bill was declared **passed**.

Co-sponsors added: Hanna, Linkhart, Phillips, Thiebaut, Windels.

SB02-006

by Senator Hanna; also Representative Witwer--Concerning workers' compensation coverage for public safety personnel exposed to hepatitis C.

The question being "Shall the bill pass?", the roll was called with the following result:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-006

YES	24	NO	11	EXCUSED	0	ABSENT	0
Anderson	Y	Fitz-Gerald	Y	May	N	Takis	Y
Andrews	N	Gordon	Y	McElhany	N	Tate	Y
Arnold	Y	Hagedorn	Y	Musgrave	N	Taylor	N
Cairns	N	Hanna	Y	Nichol	Y	Teck	N
Chlouber	Y	Hernandez	Y	Owen	N	Thiebaut	Y
Dyer	N	Hillman	N	Pascoe	Y	Tupa	Y
Entz	Y	Isgar	Y	Perlmutter	Y	Windels	Y
Epps	Y	Lamborn	N	Phillips	Y	Mr. President	Y
Evans	Y	Linkhart	Y	Reeves	Y		

A majority of all members elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the bill was declared **passed**.

Co-sponsors added: Chlouber, Epps, Fitz-Gerald, Gordon, Hagedorn, Hernandez, Isgar, Linkhart, Matsunaka, Pascoe, Perlmutter, Phillips, Reeves, Tate, Thiebaut, Windels.

DEMANDS

SB02-149

by Senator Andrews; also Representative Harvey--Concerning the requirement of a daily recitation of the pledge of allegiance in each public school in the state.

Under Senate Rule 39, Senator Andrews moved to return **SB02-149** from the Committee of Judiciary and placed on the General Orders--Second Reading of Bills Calendar for consideration by the Committee of the Whole. The roll call was taken with the following result:

YES	17	NO	18	EXCUSED	0	ABSENT	0
Anderson	Y	Fitz-Gerald	N	May	Y	Takis	N
Andrews	Y	Gordon	N	McElhany	Y	Tate	N
Arnold	Y	Hagedorn	N	Musgrave	Y	Taylor	Y
Cairns	Y	Hanna	N	Nichol	N	Teck	Y
Chlouber	Y	Hernandez	N	Owen	Y	Thiebaut	N
Dyer	Y	Hillman	Y	Pascoe	N	Tupa	N
Entz	Y	Isgar	N	Perlmutter	N	Windels	N
Epps	Y	Lamborn	Y	Phillips	N	Mr. President	N
Evans	Y	Linkhart	N	Reeves	N		

Less than a two-thirds majority of those elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the motion was declared **lost**.

On motion of Senator Thiebaut, and with a majority of those elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the General Orders--Second Reading of Bills Consent Calendar (**SB02-054, SB02-107, SB02-144**) of Tuesday, February 5, was laid over until Monday, February 11, retaining its place on the calendar.

COMMITTEE OF REFERENCE REPORTS

Judiciary

The committee has had under consideration and has had a hearing on the following appointments and recommends that the appointments be confirmed.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

effective February 1, 2002, for a term expiring at the pleasure of the Governor:

Joseph G. Ortiz of Sedalia, Colorado

Judiciary

After consideration on the merits, the committee recommends that **SB02-020** be amended as follows and, as so amended be referred to the Committee of the Whole with favorable recommendation.

Amend printed bill, page 2, strike lines 8 through 17 and substitute the following:

SB02-020

"(1) (I) A PARENT MAY NOT BE EXAMINED AS TO ANY COMMUNICATION MADE IN CONFIDENCE BY THE PARENT'S MINOR CHILD TO THE PARENT WHEN THE MINOR CHILD AND THE PARENT ARE IN THE PRESENCE OF AN ATTORNEY REPRESENTING THE MINOR CHILD, OR IN THE PRESENCE OF A PHYSICIAN WHO HAS A CONFIDENTIAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE MINOR CHILD PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (d) OF THIS SUBSECTION (1), OR IN THE PRESENCE OF A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL WHO HAS A CONFIDENTIAL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE MINOR CHILD PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (g) OF THIS SUBSECTION (1). THE EXCEPTION MAY BE WAIVED BY EXPRESS CONSENT TO DISCLOSURE BY THE MINOR CHILD WHO MADE THE COMMUNICATION OR BY FAILURE OF THE MINOR CHILD TO OBJECT WHEN THE CONTENTS OF THE COMMUNICATION ARE DEMANDED. THIS EXCEPTION DOES NOT RELIEVE ANY PHYSICIAN OR MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL FROM ANY STATUTORY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS."

Page 3, strike lines 13 through 15.

Reletter succeeding sub-subparagraphs accordingly.

Page 3, strike line 25 and substitute "EIGHTEEN YEARS;"

Judiciary

After consideration on the merits, the committee recommends that SB02-019 be amended as follows and, as so amended be referred to the Committee on Appropriations with favorable recommendation.

Amend printed bill, strike everything below the enacting clause and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. 16-11-102.3, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-102.3. Genetic testing of convicted offenders. (1) As used in this section, unless the context otherwise requires, "convicted offender" means a person who is not required to submit to a chemical testing of the person's ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE to determine the genetic markers thereof pursuant to any other provision and who is convicted of, or pleads guilty to any of the following offenses:

(a) An offense involving, or for which the factual basis involved, unlawful sexual behavior as defined in section 18-3-412.5 (1) (b), C.R.S.;

(b) A crime of violence, as listed in section 16-11-309 (2);

(c) Second degree murder, in violation of section 18-3-103 (1), C.R.S.;

(d) First degree assault, in violation of section 18-3-202 (1), C.R.S.;

(e) Second degree assault, in violation of section 18-3-203 (1) (b), (1) (c), (1) (d), (1) (g), or (2) (b.5), C.R.S.;

(f) Second degree kidnapping, in violation of section 18-3-302 (4), C.R.S.;

(g) First degree arson, in violation of section 18-4-102 (3), C.R.S.;

(h) Burglary in the first degree, in violation of section 18-4-202, C.R.S.;

(i) Aggravated robbery, in violation of section 18-4-302 (4), C.R.S.; or

(j) Any felony when the person was previously convicted of, or pled guilty to one or more of the offenses listed in paragraphs (a) to (i) of this subsection (1).

(1.5) Subject to available appropriations, beginning March 31, 2002, every felon who is sentenced to the custody of the executive director of the department of corrections shall submit to and pay for

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof prior to the person's discharge or release to parole.

(2) (a) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, p. 953, § 1, effective March 31, 2002.)

(b) Every convicted offender who, as of July 1, 2000, is in a county jail or a community corrections facility pursuant to article 27 of title 17, C.R.S., for an offense described in subsection (1) of this section shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(c) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, p. 953, § 1, effective March 31, 2002.)

(d) Every convicted offender who, as of July 1, 2000, is on probation for an offense described in subsection (1) of this section shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(3) Collection of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples required by subsection (1.5) of this section and paragraph (b) of subsection (2) of this section shall be collected at least thirty days prior to the person's discharge or release from custody. Collection of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples required by paragraph (d) of subsection (2) of this section shall be collected prior to June 30, 2001.

(4) The judicial department, the department of corrections, a sheriff, or a contractor may use reasonable force to obtain ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples in accordance with this section using medically recognized procedures. In addition, a person's refusal to comply with this section may be grounds for revocation or denial of parole or probation.

(5) Any moneys received from offenders pursuant to this section shall be deposited in the offender identification fund created in section 24-33.5-415.6, C.R.S.

(6) The Colorado bureau of investigation is directed to conduct the chemical testing of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLES obtained pursuant to this section. The results thereof shall be filed and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation and shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

SECTION 2. 16-11-104, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-104. Genetic testing. (1) (a) (I) In the case of any offender who is convicted of or pleads guilty or nolo contendere to an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior or for which the underlying factual basis involves unlawful sexual behavior, if the court sentences the offender directly to incarceration in a county jail or to a community corrections facility pursuant to article 27 of title 17, C.R.S., the court shall also order that the offender submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(II) An offender shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof if the offender is sentenced directly to incarceration in a county jail or to a community corrections facility pursuant to article 27 of title 17, C.R.S., for the conviction of or entry of a guilty or nolo contendere plea to any of the following offenses occurring on or after July 1, 2000:

(A) A crime of violence, as listed in section 16-11-309 (2);

(B) Murder in the second degree, in violation of section 18-3-103

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

(1), C.R.S.;

(C) Assault in the first degree, in violation of section 18-3-202 (1), C.R.S.;

(D) Assault in the second degree, in violation of section 18-3-203 (1) (b), (1) (c), (1) (d), (1) (g), or (2) (b.5), C.R.S.;

(E) Second degree kidnapping, in violation of section 18-3-302 (4), C.R.S.;

(F) First degree arson, in violation of section 18-4-102 (3), C.R.S.;

(G) First degree burglary, in violation of section 18-4-202, C.R.S.;

(H) Aggravated robbery, in violation of section 18-4-302 (4), C.R.S.;

(I) Second degree burglary, in violation of section 18-4-203, C.R.S.; and

(J) Third degree burglary, in violation of section 18-4-204, C.R.S.

(b) The court shall direct the sheriff of the jurisdiction in which the jail or community corrections facility to which the offender is sentenced is located to collect the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE sample for testing pursuant to this section. The results of the testing shall be filed and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such test shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(2) The sheriff may use reasonable force to obtain ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples in accordance with subsection (1) of this section.

(3) Any moneys received from offenders pursuant to ~~subparagraph (F) of paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of this section shall be deposited in the sex offender identification fund created in section 24-33.5-415.5, C.R.S. Any moneys received from offenders pursuant to subparagraph (H) of paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of this section shall be deposited in the offender identification fund created in section 24-33.5-415.6, C.R.S.~~

(4) The Colorado bureau of investigation shall conduct the chemical testing of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLES obtained pursuant to this section.

(5) As used in this section, "unlawful sexual behavior" shall have the same meaning as provided in section 18-3-412.5 (1) (b), C.R.S.

SECTION 3. 16-11-204 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW PARAGRAPH to read:

16-11-204. Conditions of probation. (2) (e) IF THE DEFENDANT IS CONVICTED OF AN OFFENSE THAT SUBJECTS THE DEFENDANT TO GENETIC TESTING PURSUANT TO SECTION 16-11-204.3, THE COURT SHALL ASSESS TO THE DEFENDANT THE COST OF COLLECTING AND TESTING A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE DEFENDANT AS REQUIRED IN SECTION 16-11-204.3.

SECTION 4. 16-11-204.3, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-204.3. Genetic testing as a condition of probation. (1) (a) A condition of probation or supervision for any offender convicted of or who receives a deferred judgment and sentence for an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior or for which the factual basis involved an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior shall be that the offender submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(b) The offender shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof as a condition of probation for the conviction of any of the following offenses occurring

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

on or after July 1, 1999:

- (I) A crime of violence, as defined in 16-11-309 (2);
- (II) Second degree murder, in violation of section 18-3-103 (1), C.R.S.;
- (III) First degree assault, in violation of section 18-3-202 (1), C.R.S.;
- (IV) Second degree assault, in violation of section 18-3-203 (1) (b), (1) (c), (1) (d), (1) (g), or (2) (b.5), C.R.S.;
- (V) Second degree kidnapping, in violation of section 18-3-302 (4), C.R.S.;
- (VI) First degree arson, in violation of section 18-4-102 (3), C.R.S.;
- (VII) Burglary in the first degree, in violation of section 18-4-202, C.R.S.;
- (VIII) Aggravated robbery, in violation of section 18-4-302 (4), C.R.S.

(b.5) Any offender convicted of second or third degree burglary, as described in sections 18-4-203 and 18-4-204, C.R.S., for an offense committed on or after July 1, 2000, shall submit to and pay for, as a condition of probation, COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE DEFENDANT to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(c) Collection of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE sample shall occur within ninety days after being placed on probation or under supervision, and the results thereof shall be filed and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(2) The judicial department or its designee or contractor may use reasonable force to obtain ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples in accordance with subsection (1) of this section. In addition, the refusal to comply with said subsection (1) may be grounds for revocation of probation.

(3) Any moneys received from offenders pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of this section shall be deposited in the sex offender identification fund created in section 24-33.5-415.5, C.R.S.~~ Any moneys received from offenders pursuant to paragraphs (b) or (b.5) of subsection ~~(1)~~ of this section shall be deposited in the offender identification fund established in section 24-33.5-415.6, C.R.S.

(4) The Colorado bureau of investigation is directed to conduct the chemical testing of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLES obtained pursuant to this section.

(5) As used in this section, "unlawful sexual behavior" shall have the same meaning as in section 18-3-412.5 (1), C.R.S.

SECTION 5. The introductory portion to 16-11-308 (4.5) (a), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-308. Custody of department of corrections - procedure. (4.5) (a) While confined in the diagnostic center, EACH OF the following offenders shall submit to a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers:

SECTION 6. 16-11-311 (11.5), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-311. Sentences - youthful offenders - legislative declaration - powers and duties of district court - authorization for youthful offender system - powers and duties of department of corrections - repeal. (11.5) (a) (I) Any juvenile who is sentenced to the youthful offender system following conviction of an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior, as defined in section 18-3-412.5 (1) (b), C.R.S., or for

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

which the underlying factual basis involved an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior, shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the juvenile's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE JUVENILE to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(II) Collection of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE sample shall occur as soon as possible after being sentenced to the youthful offender system, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(b) The department of corrections or its designee or contractor may use reasonable force to obtain ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples in accordance with paragraph (a) of this subsection (11.5).

(c) Any moneys received from juveniles pursuant to paragraph (a) of this subsection (11.5) shall be deposited in the ~~sex~~ offender identification fund created in section ~~24-33.5-415.5~~ 24-33.5-415.6, C.R.S.

(d) The Colorado bureau of investigation is directed to conduct the chemical testing of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLES obtained pursuant to this subsection (11.5).

SECTION 7. 16-11-401.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-401.5. Genetic testing prior to execution. Prior to the execution of the death penalty pursuant to this part 4, the judicial department shall obtain the chemical testing of ~~the convicted offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE CONVICTED OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof.

SECTION 8. 17-2-201 (5) (g) (I) and (5) (h) (I), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

17-2-201. State board of parole. (5) (g) (I) As a condition of parole, the board shall require any offender convicted of or who plead guilty or nolo contendere to an offense for which the factual basis involved a sexual assault as defined in part 4 of article 3 of title 18, C.R.S., to submit to chemical testing of ~~his or her blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof and to chemical testing of his or her saliva to determine the secretor status thereof. Such testing shall occur prior to the offender's release from incarceration, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(h) (I) As a condition of parole, the board may require any person found guilty of or who pleads guilty or nolo contendere to a sexual offense under the department's code of penal discipline to submit to a testing of ~~the person's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE PERSON to determine the genetic markers thereof and to chemical testing of his or her saliva to determine the secretor status thereof.

SECTION 9. 17-22.5-202 (3) (a), (3) (b.5), and (3.5), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

17-22.5-202. Ticket to leave - discharge - clothes, money, transportation. (3) Prior to the release from a correctional facility by discharge or parole of any person imprisoned for the commission of a child abuse offense which occurred within the state of Colorado, the executive director shall:

(a) Notify the Colorado bureau of investigation of:

(I) The identity of the offender; and

(II) The anticipated release date of the offender; and

(III) The last-known home address of the offender; and

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

(IV) The parole address of the offender; and

(V) The results of a chemical test of a sex offender's ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE in accordance with paragraph (b.5) of this subsection (3);

(b.5) (I) On and after July 1, 1994, direct appropriate personnel with the department of corrections to require any offender who is released from the custody of the department of corrections having completed serving a sentence for an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior or for which the factual basis involved unlawful sexual behavior as defined in section 18-3-412.5 (1), C.R.S., who is under their jurisdiction to sign a notice that informs the offender of the duty to register with local law enforcement agencies in accordance with section 18-3-412.5, C.R.S. The same persons, after obtaining a signed notice from an offender, shall notify local law enforcement agencies where the offender plans to reside of the offender's address within forty-eight hours after an offender has been placed on parole or probation when such an address is provided in the signed notice. Department of corrections personnel shall provide such notice no later than two days before the offender is to be released from the department of corrections.

(II) In addition, the department shall require any offender convicted of or who pleads guilty or nolo contendere to an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior or for which the factual basis involved unlawful sexual behavior as defined in section 18-3-412.5 (1), C.R.S., to submit to chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof and to chemical testing of the offender's saliva to determine the secretor status thereof. Such testing shall occur prior to the offender's release from incarceration, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(III) The department may use reasonable force to obtain a ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE sample and ~~saliva sample~~ in accordance with subparagraph (II) of this paragraph (b.5). In addition, any person who refuses to comply with subparagraph (II) of this paragraph (b.5) may be denied parole, or, if such person has been granted parole, such parole may be revoked.

(3.5) Any offender discharged from a correctional facility on or after July 1, 2000, who is not subject to parole or supervision shall submit to a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof. Such testing shall occur at least ninety days prior to the offender's release from incarceration, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

SECTION 10. 17-22.5-407, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

17-22.5-407. Genetic testing as condition of parole. Any offender discharged from a correctional facility on or after July 1, 2000, not subject to parole shall submit to a chemical testing of ~~the offender's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof. Such testing shall occur at least ninety days prior to the offender's release from incarceration, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

SECTION 11. 19-2-924.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

19-2-924.5. Juveniles committed to department of human services - genetic testing. (1) (a) Any juvenile who is committed to the department of human services following adjudication for an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior, as defined in section 18-3-412.5 (1) (b), C.R.S., or for which the underlying factual basis involved an offense

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

involving unlawful sexual behavior, shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the juvenile's blood~~ A BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE JUVENILE to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(b) Collection of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE sample shall occur as soon as possible after being committed to the department of human services, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(2) The department of human services or its designee or contractor may use reasonable force to obtain ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples in accordance with subsection (1) of this section.

(3) Any moneys received from juveniles pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of this section shall be deposited in the ~~sex~~ offender identification fund created in section ~~24-33.5-415.5~~ 24-33.5-415.6, C.R.S.

(4) The Colorado bureau of investigation is directed to conduct the chemical testing of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLES obtained pursuant to this section.

SECTION 12. 19-2-925.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

19-2-925.5. Genetic testing. (1) (a) As a condition of probation or supervision, any juvenile who is adjudicated or receives a deferred adjudication for an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior, as defined in section 18-3-412.5 (1) (b), C.R.S., or for which the underlying factual basis involved an offense involving unlawful sexual behavior, shall submit to and pay for COLLECTION AND a chemical testing of ~~the juvenile's blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE FROM THE OFFENDER to determine the genetic markers thereof.

(b) Collection of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE sample shall occur as soon as possible after being placed on probation or under supervision, and the results thereof shall be filed with and maintained by the Colorado bureau of investigation. The results of such tests shall be furnished to any law enforcement agency upon request.

(2) The judicial department or its designee or contractor may use reasonable force to obtain ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE samples in accordance with subsection (1) of this section. In addition, the refusal to comply with said subsection (1) may be grounds for revocation of probation.

(3) Any moneys received from juveniles pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of this section shall be deposited in the ~~sex~~ offender identification fund created in section ~~24-33.5-415.5~~ 24-33.5-415.6, C.R.S.

(4) The Colorado bureau of investigation is directed to conduct the chemical testing of the ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE SAMPLE obtained pursuant to this section.

SECTION 13. Repeal. 24-33.5-415.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is repealed.

SECTION 14. 24-33.5-415.6, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

24-33.5-415.6. Offender identification - fund. (1) There is hereby created in the state treasury the offender identification fund, referred to in this section as the "fund". Moneys in the fund shall consist of payments for genetic testing received from offenders pursuant to sections 16-11-102.3, 16-11-104, ~~(1) (a) (II), and 16-11-204.3, (1) (b) and (1) (b.5)~~, 16-11-311, 19-2-924.5, and 19-2-925.5, C.R.S. Subject to annual appropriations by the general assembly, the executive director and the state court administrator are authorized to expend moneys in the fund to

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-019

pay for genetic testing of offenders pursuant to sections 16-11-102.3, 16-11-104, ~~(1)(a)(II), and 16-11-204.3, (1)(b) and (1)(b.5)~~, 16-11-311, 19-2-924.5, and 19-2-925.5, C.R.S. At the end of any fiscal year, all unexpended and unencumbered moneys in the fund shall remain therein and shall not be credited or transferred to the general fund or any other fund.

(2) UPON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE REPEAL OF SECTION 24-33.5-415.5, ANY MONEYS REMAINING IN THE SEX OFFENDER IDENTIFICATION FUND SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE OFFENDER IDENTIFICATION FUND.

SECTION 15. 24-72-302 (4), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

24-72-302. Definitions. As used in this part 3, unless the context otherwise requires:

(4) "Criminal justice records" means all books, papers, cards, photographs, tapes, recordings, or other documentary materials, regardless of form or characteristics, that are made, maintained, or kept by any criminal justice agency in the state for use in the exercise of functions required or authorized by law or administrative rule, including but not limited to the results of chemical ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE testing to determine genetic markers conducted pursuant to sections 16-11-102.3, 16-11-104, 16-11-204.3, 16-11-308 (4.5), 17-2-201 (5) (h), and ~~(5)(i)~~, and 17-22.5-202 (3) (b.5) (II) and (3.5), C.R.S.

SECTION 16. 24-72-305 (1.5), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

24-72-305. Allowance or denial of inspection - grounds - procedure - appeal. (1.5) On the ground that disclosure would be contrary to the public interest, the custodian of criminal justice records shall deny access to the results of chemical ~~blood~~ BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCE testing to determine the genetic markers conducted pursuant to sections 16-11-102.3, 16-11-104, 16-11-204.3, 16-11-308 (4.5), 17-2-201 (5) (h), and ~~(5)(i)~~, and 17-22.5-202 (3) (b.5) (II) and (3.5), C.R.S.

SECTION 17. Effective date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2002.

SECTION 18. Safety clause. The general assembly hereby finds, determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety."

Judiciary After consideration on the merits, the committee recommends that **SB02-084** be referred favorably to the Committee of the Whole.

Judiciary After consideration on the merits, the committee recommends that **SB02-057** be amended as follows and, as so amended be referred to the Committee of the Whole with favorable recommendation.

Amend printed bill, strike everything below the enacting clause and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. Part 13 of article 4 of title 42, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SECTION to read:

42-4-1300.3. Definitions. AS USED IN THIS PART 13, UNLESS THE CONTEXT OTHERWISE REQUIRES:

(1) "BAC" MEANS EITHER:

(a) A PERSON'S BLOOD ALCOHOL CONTENT, EXPRESSED IN GRAMS OF ALCOHOL PER ONE HUNDRED MILLILITERS OF BLOOD AS SHOWN BY ANALYSIS OF SUCH PERSON'S BLOOD; OR

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

(b) A PERSON'S BREATH ALCOHOL CONTENT, EXPRESSED IN GRAMS OF ALCOHOL PER TWO HUNDRED TEN LITERS OF BREATH AS SHOWN BY ANALYSIS OF SUCH PERSON'S BREATH.

(2) "DUI" MEANS DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE, AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 42-4-1301 (1) (f), AND USE OF THE TERM SHALL INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE OFFENSE DESCRIBED IN SECTION 42-4-1301(1)(a).

(3) "DUI PER SE" MEANS DRIVING WITH A BAC OF 0.10 OR MORE, AND USE OF THE TERM SHALL INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE OFFENSE DESCRIBED IN SECTION 42-4-1301(2) (a).

(4) "DWAI" MEANS DRIVING WHILE ABILITY IMPAIRED, AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 42-4-1301 (1) (g), AND USE OF THE TERM SHALL INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE OFFENSE DESCRIBED IN SECTION 42-4-1301(1) (b).

(5) "HABITUAL USER" SHALL INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE OFFENSE DESCRIBED IN SECTION 42-4-1301(1) (c).

(6) "UDD" MEANS UNDERAGE DRINKING AND DRIVING, AND USE OF THE TERM SHALL INCORPORATE BY REFERENCE THE OFFENSE DESCRIBED IN SECTION 42-4-1301 (2) (a.5).

SECTION 2. 42-4-1301, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended, WITH THE RELOCATION OF PROVISIONS, to read:

42-4-1301. Driving under the influence - driving while impaired - driving with excessive alcoholic content - penalties.

(1) (a) It is a misdemeanor for any person who is under the influence of alcohol or one or more drugs, or a combination of both alcohol and one or more drugs, to drive any vehicle in this state.

(b) It is a misdemeanor for any person who is impaired by alcohol or by one or more drugs, or by a combination of alcohol and one or more drugs, to drive any vehicle in this state.

(c) It is a misdemeanor for any person who is an habitual user of any controlled substance defined in section 12-22-303 (7), C.R.S., to drive any vehicle in this state.

(d) For the purposes of this subsection (1), one or more drugs shall mean all substances defined as a drug in section 12-22-303 (13), C.R.S., and all controlled substances defined in section 12-22-303 (7), C.R.S., and glue-sniffing, aerosol inhalation, and the inhalation of any other toxic vapor or vapors.

(e) The fact that any person charged with a violation of this subsection (1) is or has been entitled to use one or more drugs under the laws of this state, including, but not limited to, the medical use of marijuana pursuant to section 18-18-406.3, C.R.S., shall not constitute a defense against any charge of violating this subsection (1).

(f) "Driving under the influence" means driving a vehicle when a person has consumed alcohol or one or more drugs, or a combination of alcohol and one or more drugs, which alcohol alone, or one or more drugs alone, or alcohol combined with one or more drugs affects the person to a degree that the person is substantially incapable, either mentally or physically, or both mentally and physically, to exercise clear judgment, sufficient physical control, or due care in the safe operation of a vehicle.

(g) "Driving while ability impaired" means driving a vehicle when a person has consumed alcohol or one or more drugs, or a combination of both alcohol and one or more drugs, which alcohol alone, or one or more drugs alone, or alcohol combined with one or more drugs, affects the person to the slightest degree so that the person is less able than the person ordinarily would have been, either mentally or physically, or both mentally and physically, to exercise clear judgment, sufficient physical control, or due care in the safe operation of a vehicle.

(h) Pursuant to section 16-2-106, C.R.S., in charging a violation

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

~~of paragraph (a) of this subsection (1)~~ THE OFFENSE OF DUI, it shall be sufficient to describe the offense charged as "drove a vehicle under the influence of alcohol or drugs or both".

(i) Pursuant to section 16-2-106, C.R.S., in charging ~~a violation of paragraph (b) of this subsection (1)~~ THE OFFENSE OF DWAI, it shall be sufficient to describe the offense charged as "drove a vehicle while impaired by alcohol or drugs or both".

(2) (a) It is a misdemeanor for any person to drive any vehicle in this state when the ~~amount of alcohol, as shown by analysis of the person's blood or breath, in such person's blood is 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per hundred milliliters of blood or 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath~~ PERSON'S BAC IS 0.10 OR MORE at the time of driving or within two hours after driving. During a trial, if the state's evidence raises the issue, or if a defendant presents some credible evidence, that the defendant consumed alcohol between the time that the defendant stopped driving and the time that testing occurred, such issue shall be an affirmative defense, and the prosecution must establish beyond a reasonable doubt that the minimum 0.10 blood or breath alcohol content required in this paragraph (a) was reached as a result of alcohol consumed by the defendant before the defendant stopped driving.

(a.5) It is a class A traffic infraction for any person under twenty-one years of age to drive any vehicle in this state when the ~~amount of alcohol~~ PERSON'S BAC, as shown by analysis of the person's breath subject to ~~subsection (7) of this section 42-4-1301.1,~~ is at least 0.02 but not more than 0.05 ~~grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath~~ at the time of driving or within two hours after driving.

(b) In any prosecution for ~~a violation of this subsection (2)~~ THE OFFENSE OF DUI PER SE, the defendant shall be entitled to offer direct and circumstantial evidence to show that there is a disparity between what the tests show and other facts so that the trier of fact could infer that the tests were in some way defective or inaccurate. Such evidence may include testimony of nonexpert witnesses relating to the absence of any or all of the common symptoms or signs of intoxication for the purpose of impeachment of the accuracy of the analysis of the person's blood or breath.

(c) Pursuant to section 16-2-106, C.R.S., in charging ~~a violation of this subsection (2)~~ THE OFFENSE OF DUI PER SE, it shall be sufficient to describe the offense charged as "drove a vehicle with excessive alcohol content".

(3) The offenses described in subsections (1) and (2) of this section are strict liability offenses.

(4) **[Formerly (8)]** No court shall accept a plea of guilty to a non-alcohol-related or non-drug-related traffic offense or guilty to ~~an offense under paragraph (a.5) of subsection (2) of this section~~ THE OFFENSE OF UDD from a person charged with ~~a violation of subsection (1) or (2) (a) of this section~~ DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, OR HABITUAL USER; except that the court may accept a plea of guilty to a non-alcohol-related or non-drug-related traffic offense or to ~~an offense under paragraph (a.5) of subsection (2) of this section~~ UDD upon a good faith representation by the prosecuting attorney that the attorney could not establish a prima facie case if the defendant were brought to trial on the original alcohol-related or drug-related offense.

(5) **[Formerly (4)]** Notwithstanding the provisions of section 18-1-408, C.R.S., during a trial of any person accused of ~~violating paragraph (a) of subsection (1) and subsection (2) of this section~~ BOTH DUI AND DUI PER SE, the court shall not require the prosecution to elect between the two violations. The court or a jury may consider and convict the person of either ~~paragraph (a) or paragraph (b) of subsection (1)~~ DUI OR DWAI, or ~~subsection (2)~~ DUI PER SE, or both ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (1) and subsection (2)~~ DUI AND DUI PER SE, or both ~~paragraph (b) of subsection (1) and subsection (2) of this section~~ DWAI AND DUI PER SE. If the person is convicted of more than one violation, the sentences imposed shall run concurrently.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

(6) (a) ~~[Formerly IP(5)]~~ In any prosecution for a violation of paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (1) of this section DUI OR DWAI, the amount of alcohol in the defendant's blood or breath BAC at the time of the commission of the alleged offense or within a reasonable time thereafter as shown by analysis of the defendant's blood or breath, shall give GIVES rise to the following presumptions OR INFERENCES:

(I) ~~[Formerly (5) (a)]~~ If there was at such time THE DEFENDANT'S BAC WAS 0.05 or less, grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood as shown by analysis of such person's blood or if there was at such time 0.05 or less grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath as shown by analysis of such person's breath, it shall be presumed that the defendant was not under the influence of alcohol and that the defendant's ability to operate a vehicle was not impaired by the consumption of alcohol.

(II) ~~[Formerly (5) (b)]~~ If there was at such time THE DEFENDANT'S BAC WAS in excess of 0.05 but less than 0.10, grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood as shown by analysis of such person's blood or if there was at such time in excess of 0.05 but less than 0.10 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath as shown by analysis of such person's breath, such fact shall give GIVES rise to the presumption PERMISSIBLE INFERENCE that the defendant's ability to operate a vehicle was impaired by the consumption of alcohol, and such fact may also be considered with other competent evidence in determining whether or not the defendant was under the influence of alcohol.

(III) ~~[Formerly (5) (c)]~~ If there was at such time THE DEFENDANT'S BAC WAS 0.10 or more, grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood as shown by analysis of such person's blood or if there was at such time 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath as shown by analysis of such person's breath, it shall be presumed SUCH FACT GIVES RISE TO THE PERMISSIBLE INFERENCE that the defendant was under the influence of alcohol.

(b) ~~[Formerly (5) (d)]~~ The limitations of this subsection (5) (6) shall not be construed as limiting the introduction, reception, or consideration of any other competent evidence bearing upon the question of whether or not the defendant was under the influence of alcohol or whether or not the defendant's ability to operate a vehicle was impaired by the consumption of alcohol.

(c) ~~[Formerly (11)]~~ In all actions, suits, and judicial proceedings in any court of this state concerning alcohol-related or drug-related traffic offenses, the court shall take judicial notice of methods of testing a person's alcohol or drug level and of the design and operation of devices, as certified by the department of public health and environment, for testing a person's blood, breath, saliva, or urine to determine such person's alcohol or drug level. This subsection (11) PARAGRAPH (c) shall not prevent the necessity of establishing during a trial that the testing devices used were working properly and that such testing devices were properly operated. Nothing in this subsection (11) PARAGRAPH (c) shall preclude a defendant from offering evidence concerning the accuracy of testing devices.

(d) ~~[Formerly (7) (e)]~~ If a person refuses to take or to complete, or to cooperate with the completing of, any test or tests as provided in this subsection (7) SECTION 42-4-1301.1 and such person subsequently stands trial for a violation of subsection (1) of this section DUI OR DWAI, the refusal to take or to complete, or to cooperate with the completing of, any test or tests shall be admissible into evidence at the trial, and a person may not claim the privilege against self-incrimination with regard to admission of refusal to take or to complete, or to cooperate with the completing of, any test or tests.

(e) **Involuntary blood test - admissibility.** ~~[Formerly last sentence of (7) (a) (IV)]~~ Evidence acquired through such AN involuntary blood test PURSUANT TO SECTION 42-4-1301.1 (3) shall be admissible in any prosecution for a violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, HABITUAL USER, OR UDD, and for a violation

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

of IN ANY PROSECUTION FOR CRIMINALLY NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-105, C.R.S., VEHICULAR HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-106 (1) (b), C.R.S., ASSAULT IN THE THIRD DEGREE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-204, C.R.S., or VEHICULAR ASSAULT PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-205 (1) (b), C.R.S.

(f) **Chemical test - admissibility.** ~~[(f) and (g) are formerly (7) (b) (I)]~~ The tests shall be administered at the direction of a law enforcement officer having probable cause to believe that the person had been driving a motor vehicle in violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section and in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the state board of health concerning the health of the person being tested and the accuracy of such testing. **[First sentence relocated to section 42-4-1301.1 (5)]** Strict compliance with such THE rules and regulations PRESCRIBED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT shall not be a prerequisite to the admissibility of test results at trial unless the court finds that the extent of noncompliance with a board of health rule has so impaired the validity and reliability of the testing method and the test results as to render the evidence inadmissible. In all other circumstances, failure to strictly comply with such rules and regulations shall only be considered in the weight to be given to the test results and not to the admissibility of such test results.

(g) It shall not be a prerequisite to the admissibility of test results at trial that the prosecution present testimony concerning the composition of any kit used to obtain blood, urine, saliva, or breath specimens. A sufficient evidentiary foundation concerning the compliance of such kits with the rules and regulations of the department of public health and environment shall be established by the introduction of a copy of the manufacturer's or supplier's certificate of compliance with such rules and regulations if such certificate specifies the contents, sterility, chemical makeup, and amounts of chemicals contained in such kit.

(h) **[Formerly part of (7) (b) (II)]** In any trial for a violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~, the testimony of a law enforcement officer that he or she witnessed the taking of a blood specimen by a person who the law enforcement officer reasonably believed was authorized to withdraw blood specimens shall be sufficient evidence that such person was so authorized, and testimony from the person who obtained the blood specimens concerning such person's authorization to obtain blood specimens shall not be a prerequisite to the admissibility of test results concerning the blood specimens obtained.

(i) **[Formerly (6)] (I)** Following the lawful contact with a person who has been driving a vehicle, and when a law enforcement officer reasonably suspects that a person was driving a vehicle while under the influence of or while impaired by alcohol, the law enforcement officer may conduct a preliminary screening test using a device approved by the executive director of the department of public health and environment after first advising the driver that the driver may either refuse or agree to provide a sample of the driver's breath for such preliminary test; except that, if the driver is under twenty-one years of age, the law enforcement officer may, after providing such advisement to the person, conduct such preliminary screening test if the officer reasonably suspects that the person has consumed any alcohol.

(II) The results of this preliminary screening test may be used by a law enforcement officer in determining whether probable cause exists to believe such person was driving a vehicle in violation of ~~paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (1) or subsection (2) of this section~~ and whether to administer a test pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7) of this section~~ SECTION 42-4-1301.1 (2).

(III) Neither the results of such preliminary screening test nor the fact that the person refused such test shall be used in any court action except in a hearing outside of the presence of a jury, when such hearing is held to determine if a law enforcement officer had probable cause to believe that the driver committed a violation of ~~paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (1) or subsection (2) of this section~~. The results of such preliminary screening test shall be made available to the driver or the

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

driver's attorney on request. ~~The preliminary screening test shall not substitute for or qualify as the test or tests required by paragraph (a) of subsection (7) of this section. [Preceding sentence relocated to 42-4-1301.1 (7)]~~

(7) **Penalties.** (a) (I) [~~Formerly (9) (a) (I)~~] Except as otherwise provided in subparagraphs (II) and (~~III~~) (IV) of this paragraph (a), every person who is convicted of a violation of ~~paragraph (a) or (c) of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section~~ DUI, DUI PER SE, OR HABITUAL USER shall be punished by:

(A) Imprisonment in the county jail for not less than five days nor more than one year, THE MINIMUM PERIOD OF WHICH SHALL BE MANDATORY EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN SECTION 42-4-1301.3; and

(B) ~~in addition, the court may impose~~ IN THE COURT'S DISCRETION, a fine of not less than three hundred dollars nor more than one thousand dollars; AND

(C) ~~Except as provided in subparagraph (II) of paragraph (f) of this subsection (9), the minimum period of imprisonment provided for such violation shall be mandatory. In addition to any other penalty that is imposed, every person who is convicted of a violation to which this subparagraph (I) applies shall perform~~ Not less than forty-eight hours nor more than ninety-six hours of useful public service, the performance of the minimum period of service WHICH shall be mandatory, and the court shall have no discretion to suspend the mandatory minimum period of performance of such service.

(II) [~~Formerly (9) (a) (II)~~] Upon conviction of a violation described in sub-subparagraph (A) or (B) of this subparagraph (~~III~~) (III) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (a), an offender shall be punished by:

(A) Imprisonment in the county jail for not less than ninety days nor more than one year, THE MINIMUM PERIOD OF WHICH SHALL BE MANDATORY; EXCEPT THAT THE COURT MAY SUSPEND UP TO EIGHTY DAYS OF THE PERIOD OF IMPRISONMENT IF THE OFFENDER COMPLIES WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 42-4-1301.3; and

(B) ~~in addition, the court may impose~~ IN THE COURT'S DISCRETION, a fine of not less than five hundred dollars nor more than one thousand five hundred dollars; AND

(C) ~~The minimum period of imprisonment provided for such violation shall be mandatory, but the court may suspend up to eighty days of the period of imprisonment if the offender complies with the provisions of subparagraph (I) of paragraph (f) of this subsection (9). In addition to any other penalty that is imposed, every person who is convicted of a violation described in sub-subparagraph (A) or (B) of this subparagraph (II) shall perform~~ Not less than sixty hours nor more than one hundred twenty hours of useful public service, the performance of the minimum period of service WHICH shall be mandatory, and the court shall have no discretion to suspend the mandatory minimum period of performance of such service.

(III) This Subparagraph (II) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (a) shall apply to:

(A) A violation of ~~paragraph (a) or (c) of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section~~ CONVICTION FOR DUI, DUI PER SE, OR HABITUAL USER, which violation occurred at any time after the date of a previous violation, for which there has been a conviction, of ~~paragraph (a) or (c) of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section~~ FOR DUI, DUI PER SE, OR HABITUAL USER, or of FOR VEHICULAR HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO section 18-3-106 (1) (b) (I) or VEHICULAR ASSAULT PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-205 (1) (b) (I), C.R.S., or of driving while such person's driver's license was under restraint pursuant to section ~~42-2-138~~ 42-4-138 (4) (b); or

(B) A violation of ~~paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (1) of this section or of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section~~ CONVICTION

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

FOR DUI, DWAI, OR DUI PER SE when the amount of alcohol in such person's blood, as shown by analysis of the person's blood or breath, BAC was 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving.

~~(C) and (D) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, 2nd Ex. Sess., p. 2, § 3, effective September 25, 2001.)~~

(IV) [Formerly (9) (a) (III)] Upon a conviction of a violation of paragraph (a) or (c) of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section FOR DUI, DUI PER SE, OR HABITUAL USER, which violation occurred at any time after the date of a previous violation, for which there has been a conviction, of paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of this section FOR DWAI, an offender shall be punished by:

(A) Imprisonment in the county jail for not less than seventy days nor more than one year, THE MINIMUM PERIOD OF WHICH SHALL BE MANDATORY; EXCEPT THAT THE COURT MAY SUSPEND UP TO SIXTY-THREE DAYS OF THE PERIOD OF IMPRISONMENT IF THE OFFENDER COMPLIES WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 42-4-1301.3; and

(B) ~~in addition, the court may impose~~ IN THE COURT'S DISCRETION, A fine of not less than four hundred fifty dollars nor more than one thousand five hundred dollars; AND

(C) ~~The minimum period of imprisonment provided for such violation shall be mandatory, but the court may suspend up to sixty-three days of the period of imprisonment if the offender complies with the provisions of subparagraph (f) of paragraph (f) of this subsection (9). In addition to any other penalty that is imposed, every person who is convicted of such violation shall perform~~ Not less than fifty-six hours nor more than one hundred twelve hours of useful public service, the performance of the minimum period of service WHICH shall be mandatory, and the court shall have no discretion to suspend the mandatory minimum period of performance of such service.

~~(IV) and (V) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, 2nd Ex. Sess., p. 2, § 3, effective September 25, 2001.)~~

(b) (I) [Formerly (9) (b) (I)] Except as otherwise provided in subparagraphs (II) and (III) of this paragraph (b), every person who is convicted of a violation of paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of this section DWAI shall be punished by:

(A) Imprisonment in the county jail for not less than two days nor more than one hundred eighty days, THE MINIMUM PERIOD OF WHICH SHALL BE MANDATORY EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 42-4-1301.3; and

(B) ~~in addition, the court may impose~~ IN THE COURT'S DISCRETION, A fine of not less than one hundred dollars nor more than five hundred dollars; AND

(C) ~~Except as provided in subparagraph (II) of paragraph (f) of this subsection (9), the minimum period of imprisonment provided for such violation shall be mandatory. In addition to any other penalty that is imposed, every person who is convicted of a violation to which this subparagraph (f) applies shall perform~~ Not less than twenty-four hours nor more than forty-eight hours of useful public service, the performance of the minimum period of service WHICH shall be mandatory, and the court shall have no discretion to suspend the mandatory minimum period of performance of such service.

(II) [Formerly (9) (b) (II)] Upon conviction of a second or subsequent violation of paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of this section OFFENSE OF DWAI, an offender shall be punished by:

(A) Imprisonment in the county jail for not less than forty-five days nor more than one year, THE MINIMUM PERIOD OF WHICH SHALL BE MANDATORY; EXCEPT THAT THE COURT MAY SUSPEND UP TO FORTY DAYS OF THE PERIOD OF IMPRISONMENT IF THE OFFENDER COMPLIES WITH THE

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

PROVISIONS OF SECTION 42-4-1301.3; and

~~(B) in addition, the court may impose~~ IN THE COURT'S DISCRETION, A fine of not less than three hundred dollars nor more than one thousand dollars; AND

~~(C) The minimum period of imprisonment as provided for such violation shall be mandatory, but the court may suspend up to forty days of the period of imprisonment if the offender complies with the provisions of subparagraph (I) of paragraph (f) of this subsection (9). In addition to any other penalty that is imposed, every person who is convicted of a violation to which this subparagraph (II) applies shall perform~~ Not less than forty-eight hours nor more than ninety-six hours of useful public service, the performance of the minimum period of service WHICH shall be mandatory, and the court shall have no discretion to suspend the mandatory minimum period of performance of such service.

~~(A) to (D) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, 2nd Ex. Sess., p. 2, § 3, effective September 25, 2001.)~~

~~(III) [Formerly (9) (b) (III)] Upon conviction of a violation of paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of this section FOR DWAI, which violation occurred at any time after the date of a previous violation, for which there has been a conviction, of paragraph (a) or (c) of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section FOR DUI, DUI PER SE, OR HABITUAL USER, or of VEHICULAR HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-106 (1) (b) (I) or VEHICULAR ASSAULT PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-205 (1) (b) (I), C.R.S., or of driving while such person's driver's license was under restraint as described in section 42-2-138 (4) (b), an offender shall be punished by:~~

~~(A) Imprisonment in the county jail for not less than sixty days nor more than one year, THE MINIMUM PERIOD OF WHICH SHALL BE MANDATORY; EXCEPT THAT THE COURT MAY SUSPEND UP TO FIFTY-FOUR DAYS OF THE PERIOD OF IMPRISONMENT IF THE OFFENDER COMPLIES WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 42-4-1301.3; and~~

~~(B) in addition, the court may impose~~ IN THE COURT'S DISCRETION, A fine of not less than four hundred dollars nor more than one thousand two hundred dollars; AND

~~(C) The minimum period of imprisonment provided for such violation shall be mandatory, but the court may suspend up to fifty-four days of the period of imprisonment if the offender complies with the provisions of subparagraph (I) of paragraph (f) of this subsection (9). In addition to any other penalty that is imposed, every person who is convicted of a violation of paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of this section as described in this subparagraph (II) shall perform~~ Not less than fifty-two hours nor more than one hundred four hours of useful public service, the performance of the minimum period of service WHICH shall be mandatory, and the court shall have no discretion to suspend the mandatory minimum period of performance of such service.

~~(IV) Notwithstanding any other provision of this paragraph (b), if a person is charged with a violation of paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of this section and the amount of alcohol in such person's blood, as shown by analysis of the person's blood or breath, was 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving, and if for such incident the person is then convicted of the lesser offense of driving while ability impaired under paragraph (b) of said subsection (1), the person shall be subject to the penalties specified in subparagraph (II) of paragraph (a) of this subsection (9) for such conviction.~~

~~(A) to (D) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, 2nd Ex. Sess., p. 2, § 3, effective September 25, 2001.)~~

~~(V) and (VI) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, 2nd Ex. Sess., p. 2, § 3, effective September 25, 2001.)~~

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

(c) (I) [**Formerly (9) (d)**] For the purposes of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection ~~(9) (7)~~, a person shall be deemed to have a previous conviction of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ FOR DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, OR HABITUAL USER, or VEHICULAR HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-106 (1) (b) (I) or VEHICULAR ASSAULT PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-205 (1) (b) (I), C.R.S., if such person has been convicted under the laws of any other state, the United States, or any territory subject to the jurisdiction of the United States of an act ~~which~~ THAT, if committed within this state, would be a violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ CONSTITUTE THE OFFENSE OF DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, OR HABITUAL USER, or VEHICULAR HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-106 (1) (b) (I) or VEHICULAR ASSAULT PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-205 (1) (b) (I), C.R.S.

(II) [**Formerly (9) (e) (II)**] For sentencing purposes concerning convictions for second and subsequent offenses, prima facie proof of a defendant's previous convictions shall be established when the prosecuting attorney and the defendant stipulate to the existence of the prior conviction or convictions or the prosecuting attorney presents to the court a copy of the driving record of the defendant provided by the department of revenue of this state, or provided by a similar agency in another state, ~~which~~ THAT contains a reference to such previous conviction or convictions or presents an authenticated copy of the record of the previous conviction or judgment from any court of record of this state or from a court of any other state, the United States, or any territory subject to the jurisdiction of the United States. The court shall not proceed to immediate sentencing when there is not a stipulation to prior convictions or if the prosecution requests an opportunity to obtain a driving record or a copy of a court record. The prosecuting attorney shall not be required to plead or prove any previous convictions at trial, and sentencing concerning convictions for second and subsequent offenses shall be a matter to be determined by the court at sentencing.

(III) [**Formerly (13)**] As used in this section PART 13, "convicted" includes a plea of no contest accepted by the court.

(d) [**Formerly IP(9) (g), (9) (g) (I), (9) (g) (II), and (9) (g) (III) (B)**] In addition to the penalties prescribed in this subsection ~~(9) (7)~~:

(I) Persons convicted of ~~violations of subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, HABITUAL USER, AND UDD are subject to the costs imposed by section 24-4.1-119 (1) (c), C.R.S., relating to the crime victim compensation fund;

(II) Persons convicted of ~~violations of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section~~ DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, AND HABITUAL USER are subject to an additional penalty surcharge of not less than twenty-five dollars and not more than five hundred dollars for programs to address persistent drunk drivers. Any moneys collected for such surcharge shall be transmitted to the state treasurer, who shall credit the same to the persistent drunk driver cash fund created by section 42-3-130.5.

~~(III) (B) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2000, p. 1078, § 7, effective July 1, 2000.)~~

(e) [**Formerly part of (9) (h)**] In addition to any other penalty provided by law, the court may sentence a defendant who is convicted pursuant to this section to a period of probation for purposes of treatment not to exceed two years. As a condition of probation, the defendant shall be required to make restitution in accordance with the provisions of section 16-11-204.5, C.R.S.

(f) [**Formerly part of (9) (h)**] In addition to any other penalty provided by law, the court may sentence a defendant to attend and pay for one appearance at a victim impact panel approved by the court, for which the fee assessed to the defendant shall not exceed twenty-five dollars.

(g) [**Formerly part of 42-4-1301 (10) (d)**] In addition to any fines, fees, or costs levied against a person convicted of ~~a violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, HABITUAL

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

USER, AND UDD, the judge shall assess each such person for the cost of the presentence or postsentence alcohol and drug evaluation and supervision services.

(h) IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER PENALTIES PRESCRIBED IN THIS PART 13, THE COURT SHALL ASSESS AN AMOUNT, NOT TO EXCEED SIXTY DOLLARS, UPON ANY PERSON REQUIRED TO PERFORM USEFUL PUBLIC SERVICE.

~~(12) (Deleted by amendment, L. 95, p. 315, § 3, effective July 1, 1995.)~~

SECTION 3. Part 13 of article 4 of title 42, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF THE FOLLOWING NEW SECTIONS CONTAINING RELOCATED PROVISIONS, WITH AMENDMENTS, to read:

42-4-1301.1. Expressed consent for the taking of blood, breath, urine, or saliva sample - testing. (1) ~~[Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (I)]~~ ~~On and after July 1, 1983,~~ Any person who drives any motor vehicle upon the streets and highways and elsewhere throughout this state shall be deemed to have expressed such person's consent to the provisions of this ~~paragraph (a)~~ SECTION.

(2) (a) (I) ~~[Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (II) (A)]~~ Any person who drives any motor vehicle upon the streets and highways and elsewhere throughout this state shall be required to take and complete, and to cooperate in the taking and completing of, any test or tests of such person's breath or blood for the purpose of determining the alcoholic content of the person's blood or breath when so requested and directed by a law enforcement officer having probable cause to believe that the person was driving a motor vehicle in violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ THE PROHIBITIONS AGAINST DUI, DUI PER SE, DWAI, HABITUAL USER, OR UDD. Except as otherwise provided in this section, if a person who is twenty-one years of age or older requests that said test be a blood test, then the test shall be of his or her blood; but, if such person requests that a specimen of his or her blood not be drawn, then a specimen of such person's breath shall be obtained and tested. A person who is under twenty-one years of age shall be entitled to request a blood test unless the alleged violation is ~~a class A traffic infraction~~ UDD, in which case a specimen of such person's breath shall be obtained and tested, except as provided in ~~sub-subparagraph (B) of this subparagraph~~ (II) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (a).

(II) ~~[Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (II) (B)]~~ If a person elects either a blood test or a breath test, such person shall not be permitted to change such election, and, if such person fails to take and complete, and to cooperate in the completing of, the test elected, such failure shall be deemed to be a refusal to submit to testing. If such person is unable to take, or to complete, or to cooperate in the completing of a breath test because of injuries, illness, disease, physical infirmity, or physical incapacity, or if such person is receiving medical treatment at a location at which a breath testing instrument certified by the department of public health and environment is not available, the test shall be of such person's blood.

(III) ~~[Formerly 42-2-126 (2) (a) (II)]~~ If a law enforcement officer requests a test under ~~the provisions of section 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (II)~~ THIS PARAGRAPH (a), the person must cooperate with the request such that the sample of blood or breath can be obtained within two hours of the person's driving.

(b) (I) ~~[Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (III)]~~ Any person who drives any motor vehicle upon the streets and highways and elsewhere throughout this state shall be required to submit to and to complete, and to cooperate in the completing of, a test or tests of such person's blood, saliva, and urine for the purpose of determining the drug content within the person's system when so requested and directed by a law enforcement officer having probable cause to believe that the person was driving a motor vehicle in violation of ~~paragraph (a), (b), or (c) of subsection (1) of this section~~ THE PROHIBITIONS AGAINST DUI, DWAI, OR HABITUAL

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

USER and when it is reasonable to require such testing of blood, saliva, and urine to determine whether such person was under the influence of, or impaired by, one or more drugs, or one or more controlled substances, or a combination of both alcohol and one or more drugs, or a combination of both alcohol and one or more controlled substances.

(II) IF A LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER REQUESTS A TEST UNDER THIS PARAGRAPH (b), THE PERSON MUST COOPERATE WITH THE REQUEST SUCH THAT THE SAMPLE OF BLOOD OR BREATH CAN BE OBTAINED WITHIN TWO HOURS OF THE PERSON'S DRIVING.

(3) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (IV)] Any person who is required to take and to complete, and to cooperate in the completing of, any test or tests shall cooperate with the person authorized to obtain specimens of such person's blood, breath, saliva, or urine, including the signing of any release or consent forms required by any person, hospital, clinic, or association authorized to obtain such specimens. If such person does not cooperate with the person, hospital, clinic, or association authorized to obtain such specimens, including the signing of any release or consent forms, such noncooperation shall be considered a refusal to submit to testing. No law enforcement officer shall physically restrain any person for the purpose of obtaining a specimen of such person's blood, breath, saliva, or urine for testing except when the officer has probable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of CRIMINALLY NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO section 18-3-105, VEHICULAR HOMICIDE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-106 (1) (b), ASSAULT IN THE THIRD DEGREE PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-204, or VEHICULAR ASSAULT PURSUANT TO SECTION 18-3-205 (1) (b), C.R.S., and the person is refusing to take or to complete, or to cooperate in the completing of, any test or tests, then, in such event, the law enforcement officer may require a blood test. Evidence acquired through such involuntary blood test shall be admissible in any prosecution for a violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section and for a violation of section 18-3-105, 18-3-106 (1) (b), 18-3-204, or 18-3-205 (1) (b), C.R.S. [Last sentence moved to 42-4-1301 (6) (e)]

(4) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (V)] Any driver of a commercial motor vehicle requested to submit to a test as provided in subparagraph (H) of this paragraph (a) OR (b) OF SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION shall be warned by the law enforcement officer requesting the test that a refusal to submit to the test shall result in an out-of-service order as defined under section 42-2-402 (8) for a period of twenty-four hours and a revocation of the privilege to operate a commercial motor vehicle for one year as provided under section 42-2-126.

(5) [Formerly first sentence of 42-4-1301 (7) (b) (I)] The tests shall be administered at the direction of a law enforcement officer having probable cause to believe that the person had been driving a motor vehicle in violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section 42-4-1301 and in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the state board DEPARTMENT of PUBLIC health AND ENVIRONMENT concerning the health of the person being tested and the accuracy of such testing.

(6) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (b) (II)] (a) No person except a physician, a registered nurse, a paramedic, as certified in part 2 of article 3.5 of title 25, C.R.S., an emergency medical technician, as defined in part 1 of article 3.5 of title 25, C.R.S., or a person whose normal duties include withdrawing blood samples under the supervision of a physician or registered nurse shall be entitled to withdraw blood for the purpose of determining the alcoholic or drug content therein. In any trial for a violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section, the testimony of a law enforcement officer that he or she witnessed the taking of a blood specimen by a person who the law enforcement officer reasonably believed was authorized to withdraw blood specimens shall be sufficient evidence that such person was so authorized, and testimony from the person who obtained the blood specimens concerning such person's authorization to obtain blood specimens shall not be a prerequisite to the admissibility of test results concerning the blood specimens obtained. [Preceding sentence relocated to 42-4-1301 (6) (h)]

(b) No civil liability shall attach to any person authorized to

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

obtain blood, breath, saliva, or urine specimens or to any hospital, clinic, or association in or for which such specimens are obtained as provided in this ~~subsection (7)~~ SECTION as a result of the act of obtaining such specimens from any person submitting thereto if such specimens were obtained according to the rules and regulations prescribed by the ~~state board~~ DEPARTMENT of PUBLIC health AND ENVIRONMENT; except that this provision shall not relieve any such person from liability for negligence in the obtaining of any specimen sample.

(7) [Formerly last sentence of 42-4-1301 (6)] ~~The~~ A preliminary screening test CONDUCTED BY A LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 42-4-1301 (6) (i) shall not substitute for or qualify as the test or tests required by ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~ (2) of this section.

(8) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (c)] Any person who is dead or unconscious shall be tested to determine the alcohol or drug content of the person's blood or any drug content within such person's system as provided in this ~~subsection (7)~~ SECTION. If a test cannot be administered to a person who is unconscious, hospitalized, or undergoing medical treatment because the test would endanger the person's life or health, the law enforcement agency shall be allowed to test any blood, urine, or saliva ~~which~~ THAT was obtained and not utilized by a health care provider and shall have access to that portion of the analysis and results of any tests administered by such provider ~~which~~ THAT shows the alcohol or drug content of the person's blood, urine, or saliva or any drug content within the person's system. Such test results shall not be considered privileged communications, and the provisions of section 13-90-107, C.R.S., relating to the physician-patient privilege shall not apply. Any person who is dead, in addition to the tests prescribed, shall also have the person's blood checked for carbon monoxide content and for the presence of drugs, as prescribed by the department of public health and environment. Such information obtained shall be made a part of the accident report.

42-4-1301.2. Refusal of test - effect on driver's license - revocation - reinstatement. (1) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (7) (d)] If a person refuses to take, or to complete, or to cooperate with the completing of any test or tests as provided in ~~this subsection (7)~~ SECTION 42-4-1301.1, the person shall be subject to license revocation pursuant to the provisions of section 42-2-126. Such revocation shall take effect prior to and shall stay the remainder of any previous suspension, or denial in lieu of suspension, and shall not run concurrently, in whole or in part, with any previous or subsequent suspensions, revocations, or denials ~~which~~ THAT may be provided for by law, including any suspension, revocation, or denial ~~which~~ THAT results from a conviction of criminal charges arising out of the same occurrence for a violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ 42-4-1301. The remainder of any suspension, or denial in lieu of suspension, stayed pursuant to the provisions of this ~~paragraph (d)~~ SUBSECTION (1) shall be reinstated following the completion of any revocation provided for in section 42-2-126. Any revocation taken under said section shall not preclude other actions ~~which~~ THAT the department is required to take in the administration of the provisions of this title.

(2) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (g) (III) (A)] A person convicted of a violation of ~~paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (1) or of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section~~ 42-4-1301, which violation occurred on or after July 1, 2000, and within five years after the date of a previous violation for which there was a conviction under ~~paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (1) or paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this SAID section~~, shall be required to obtain a restricted license pursuant to the provisions of section 42-2-132.5 for a period of not less than one year after reinstatement.

42-4-1301.3. Alcohol and drug driving safety program. (1) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (e) (I)] Upon conviction of a violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ 42-4-1301, the court shall sentence the defendant in accordance with the provisions of ~~paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection (9)~~ THIS SECTION AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THIS PART 13. The court shall consider the alcohol and drug evaluation required pursuant to ~~subsection (10) of this section~~ prior to sentencing;

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

except that the court may proceed to immediate sentencing without considering such alcohol and drug evaluation if the defendant has no prior CONVICTIONS or pending charges under this section and neither the defendant nor the prosecuting attorney objects. If the court proceeds to immediate sentencing, without considering such alcohol and drug evaluation, such alcohol and drug evaluation shall be conducted after sentencing, and the court shall order the defendant to complete the education and treatment program recommended in such alcohol and drug evaluation. If the defendant disagrees with the education and treatment program recommended in such alcohol and drug evaluation, the defendant may request the court to hold a hearing to determine which education and treatment program should be completed by the defendant.

(2) (a) **[Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (f) (I)]** (I) The sentence of any person subject to the provisions of ~~subparagraph (II), (III), or (IV) of paragraph (a) or subparagraph (II), (III), or (IV) of paragraph (b) of this subsection (9)~~ SECTION 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (II), (7) (a) (IV), (7) (b) (II), OR (7) (b) (III) may be suspended to the extent provided for in said ~~subparagraphs~~ SECTION if THE OFFENDER:

(A) ~~The offender~~ Receives a presentence alcohol and drug evaluation;

(B) Based on that evaluation, satisfactorily completes an appropriate level I or level II alcohol and drug driving safety education or treatment program; and

(C) Abstains from the use of alcohol for a period of one year from the date of sentencing. Such abstinence shall be monitored by the treatment facility by the administration of disulfiram or by any other means that the director of the treatment facility deems appropriate.

(II) If, at any time during the one-year period, the offender does not satisfactorily comply with the conditions of the suspension, the sentence shall be reimposed, and the offender shall spend that portion of such offender's sentence that was suspended in the county jail.

(b) **[Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (f) (II)]** In the case of any person who is sentenced pursuant to the provisions of ~~subparagraph (I) of paragraph (a) or subparagraph (I) of paragraph (b) of this subsection (9)~~ SECTION 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (I) OR (7) (b) (I), the court may suspend the mandatory minimum of any sentence of imprisonment if, as a condition thereof, the offender has a presentence or postsentence alcohol and drug evaluation and satisfactorily completes and meets all financial obligations of a level I or level II program as is determined appropriate by the alcohol and drug evaluation required pursuant to ~~subsection (10)~~ of this section.

(3) **[Formerly 42-4-1301 (10) (a), (10) (b), and (10) (c)]** (a) The judicial department shall administer in each judicial district an alcohol and drug driving safety program that provides presentence and postsentence alcohol and drug evaluations on all persons convicted of a violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ 42-4-1301. The alcohol and drug driving safety program shall further provide supervision and monitoring of all such persons whose sentences or terms of probation require completion of a program of alcohol and drug driving safety education or treatment.

(b) The presentence and postsentence alcohol and drug evaluations shall be conducted by such persons determined by the judicial department to be qualified to provide evaluation and supervision services as described in ~~paragraph (c) of this subsection (10)~~ THIS SECTION.

(c) (I) An alcohol and drug evaluation shall be conducted on all persons convicted of a violation of ~~subsection (1) or (2) of this section~~ 42-4-1301, and a copy of the report of the evaluation shall be provided to such person. The report shall be made available to and shall be considered by the court prior to sentencing unless the court proceeds to immediate sentencing pursuant to the provisions of ~~paragraph (e) of subsection (9)~~ (1) of this section.

(II) The report shall contain the defendant's prior traffic record,

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

characteristics and history of alcohol or drug problems, and amenability to rehabilitation. The report shall include a recommendation as to alcohol and drug driving safety education or treatment for the defendant.

(III) The alcohol evaluation shall be conducted and the report prepared by a person who is trained and knowledgeable in the diagnosis of chemical dependency. Such person's duties may also include appearing at sentencing and probation hearings as required, referring defendants to education and treatment agencies in accordance with orders of the court, monitoring defendants in education and treatment programs, notifying the probation department and the court of any defendant failing to meet the conditions of probation or referral to education or treatment, appearing at revocation hearings as required, and providing assistance in data reporting and program evaluation.

(IV) For the purpose of this ~~subsection (10)~~ SECTION, "alcohol and drug driving safety education or treatment" means either level I or level II education or treatment programs that are approved by the division of alcohol and drug abuse. Level I programs are to be short-term, didactic education programs. Level II programs are to be therapeutically-oriented education, long-term outpatient, and comprehensive residential programs. Any defendant sentenced to level I or level II programs shall be instructed by the court to meet all financial obligations of such programs. If such financial obligations are not met, the sentencing court shall be notified for the purpose of collection or review and further action on the defendant's sentence. Nothing in this section shall prohibit treatment agencies from applying to the state for funds to recover the costs of level II treatment for defendants determined to be indigent by the court.

(4) (a) **[Formerly 42-4-1301 (10) (d)]** There is hereby created an alcohol and drug driving safety program fund in the office of the state treasurer to the credit of which shall be deposited all moneys as directed by this paragraph (a). ~~In addition to any fines, fees, or costs levied against a person convicted of a violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section, the judge shall assess each such person for the cost of the presentence or postsentence alcohol and drug evaluation and supervision services.~~ The assessment in effect on July 1, 1998, shall remain in effect unless the judicial department and the division of alcohol and drug abuse have provided to the general assembly a statement of the cost of the program, including costs of administration for the past and current fiscal year to include a proposed change in the assessment. The general assembly shall then consider the proposed new assessment and approve the amount to be assessed against each person during the following fiscal year in order to ensure that the alcohol and drug driving safety program established in this ~~subsection (10)~~ SECTION shall be financially self-supporting. Any adjustment in the amount to be assessed shall be so noted in the appropriation to the judicial department and the division of alcohol and drug abuse as a footnote or line item related to this program in the general appropriation bill. The state auditor shall periodically audit the costs of the programs to determine that they are reasonable and that the rate charged is accurate based on these costs. Any other fines, fees, or costs levied against such person shall not be part of the program fund. The amount assessed for the alcohol and drug evaluation shall be transmitted by the court to the state treasurer to be credited to the alcohol and drug driving safety program fund. Fees charged under sections 25-1-306 (1), C.R.S., and 25-1-1102 (1), C.R.S., to approved alcohol and drug treatment facilities that provide level I and level II programs as provided in paragraph (c) of ~~this subsection (10)~~ SUBSECTION (3) OF THIS SECTION shall be transmitted to the state treasurer, who shall credit the fees to the alcohol and drug driving safety program fund. Upon appropriation by the general assembly, these funds shall be expended by the judicial department and the division of alcohol and drug abuse for the administration of the alcohol and drug driving safety program. In administering the alcohol and drug driving safety program, the judicial department is authorized to contract with any agency for such services as the judicial department deems necessary. Moneys deposited in the alcohol and drug driving safety program fund shall remain in said fund to be used for the purposes set forth in this ~~subsection (10)~~ SECTION and shall not revert or transfer to the general fund except by further act of the general assembly.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

(b) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (10) (e)] The judicial department shall ensure that qualified personnel are placed in the judicial districts. The judicial department and the division of alcohol and drug abuse shall jointly develop and maintain criteria for evaluation techniques, treatment referral, data reporting, and program evaluation.

(c) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (10) (f)] The alcohol and drug driving safety program shall cooperate in providing services to a defendant who resides in a judicial district other than the one in which the arrest was made. Alcohol and drug driving safety programs may cooperate in providing services to any defendant who resides at a location closer to another judicial district's program. The requirements of this subsection ~~(10)~~ SECTION shall not apply to persons who are not residents of Colorado at the time of sentencing.

(5) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (10) (g)] The provisions of this subsection ~~(10)~~ SECTION are also applicable to any defendant who receives a deferred prosecution in accordance with section 16-7-401, C.R.S., or who receives a deferred sentence in accordance with section 16-7-403, C.R.S., and the completion of any stipulated alcohol evaluation, level I or level II education program, or level I or level II treatment program to be completed by the defendant shall be ordered by the court in accordance with the conditions of such deferred prosecution or deferred sentence as stipulated to by the prosecution and the defendant.

42-4-1301.4. Useful public service - definition - local programs - assessment of costs. (1) THIS SECTION APPLIES TO ANY PERSON CONVICTED OF A VIOLATION OF SECTION 42-4-1301 AND WHO IS ORDERED TO COMPLETE USEFUL PUBLIC SERVICE.

(2) (a) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (I)] For the purposes of this subsection ~~(9)~~ SECTION AND SECTION 42-4-1301, "useful public service" means any work ~~which~~ THAT is beneficial to the public and ~~which~~ involves a minimum of direct supervision or other public cost. "Useful public service" does not include any work ~~which~~ THAT would endanger the health or safety of any person convicted of a violation of any of the offenses specified in subsection ~~(1) or (2)~~ of this section 42-4-1301.

(b) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (II) (A)] The sentencing court, the probation department, the county sheriff, and the board of county commissioners shall cooperate in identifying suitable work assignments. An offender sentenced to such work assignment shall complete the same within the time established by the court.

(3) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (II) (B)] There may be established in the probation department of each judicial district in the state a useful public service program under the direction of the chief probation officer. It is the purpose of the useful public service program: To identify and seek the cooperation of governmental entities and political subdivisions thereof, as well as corporations organized not for profit, for the purpose of providing useful public service jobs; to interview and assign persons who have been ordered by the court to perform useful public service to suitable useful public service jobs; and to monitor compliance or noncompliance of such persons in performing useful public service assignments within the time established by the court.

(4) (a) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (II) (C)] Any general public liability insurance policy obtained pursuant to this subsection ~~(9)~~ SECTION shall be in a sum of not less than the current limit on government liability under the "Colorado Governmental Immunity Act", article 10 of title 24, C.R.S.

(b) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (III)] For the purposes of the "Colorado Governmental Immunity Act", article 10 of title 24, C.R.S., "public employee" does not include any person who is sentenced pursuant to this subsection ~~(9)~~ SECTION 42-4-1301 to participate in any type of useful public service.

(c) [Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (IV)] No governmental entity shall be liable under the "Workers' Compensation Act of Colorado", articles 40 to 47 of title 8, C.R.S., or under the "Colorado Employment

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

Security Act", articles 70 to 82 of title 8, C.R.S., for any benefits on account of any person who is sentenced pursuant to ~~this subsection (9)~~ SECTION 42-4-1301 to participate in any type of useful public service, but nothing in this ~~subparagraph (IV)~~ PARAGRAPH (c) shall prohibit a governmental entity from electing to accept the provisions of the "Workers' Compensation Act of Colorado" by purchasing and keeping in force a policy of workers' compensation insurance covering such person.

(5) [~~Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (i) (V)~~] ~~On and after July 1, 1984,~~ IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 42-4-1301 (7) (h), in addition to any other penalties prescribed in this ~~subsection (9)~~ PART 13, the court shall assess an amount, not to exceed sixty dollars, upon any person required to perform useful public service. Such amount shall be used by the operating agency responsible for overseeing such person's useful public service program to pay the cost of administration of the program, a general public liability policy covering such person, and, if such person will be covered by workers' compensation insurance pursuant to ~~subparagraph (IV) of this paragraph (i)~~ (c) OF SUBSECTION (4) OF THIS SECTION or an insurance policy providing such or similar coverage, the cost of purchasing and keeping in force such insurance coverage. Such amount shall be adjusted from time to time by the general assembly in order to insure that the useful public service program established in this ~~subsection (9)~~ SECTION shall be financially self-supporting. The proceeds from such amounts shall be used by the operating agency only for defraying the cost of personal services and other operating expenses related to the administration of the program and the cost of purchasing and keeping in force policies of general public liability insurance, workers' compensation insurance, or insurance providing such or similar coverage and shall not be used by the operating agency for any other purpose.

(6) [~~Formerly 42-4-1301 (9) (c)~~] The provisions of this ~~subsection (9)~~ SECTION relating to the performance of useful public service are also applicable to any defendant who receives a deferred prosecution in accordance with section 16-7-401, C.R.S., or who receives a deferred sentence in accordance with section 16-7-403, C.R.S., and the completion of any stipulated amount of useful public service hours to be completed by the defendant shall be ordered by the court in accordance with the conditions of such deferred prosecution or deferred sentence as stipulated to by the prosecution and the defendant.

SECTION 4. 18-3-106 (4) (g), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

18-3-106. Vehicular homicide. (4) (g) Notwithstanding any provision in section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1, C.R.S., concerning requirements which relate to the manner in which tests are administered, the test or tests taken pursuant to the provisions of this section may be used for the purposes of driver's license revocation proceedings under section 42-2-126, C.R.S., and for the purposes of prosecutions for violations of section 42-4-1301 (1) or (2), C.R.S.

SECTION 5. 18-3-205 (4) (g), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

18-3-205. Vehicular assault. (4) (g) Notwithstanding any provision in section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-2-1301.1, C.R.S., concerning requirements which relate to the manner in which tests are administered, the test or tests taken pursuant to the provisions of this section may be used for the purposes of driver's license revocation proceedings under section 42-2-126, C.R.S., and for the purposes of prosecutions for violations of section 42-4-1301 (1) or (2), C.R.S.

SECTION 6. 42-2-126 (1) (a), (2) (a) (I.7), (2) (a) (II), (2) (a) (IV), (3) (a), (5) (a), (7) (c) (II), (7) (c) (III), (9) (c) (I), and (9) (c) (III), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

42-2-126. Revocation of license based on administrative determination. (1) The purposes of this section are:

- (a) To provide safety for all persons using the highways of this

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

state by quickly revoking the driver's license of any person who has shown himself or herself to be a safety hazard by driving with an excessive amount of alcohol in his or her body and any person who has refused to submit to an analysis as required by section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1;

(2)(a) The department shall revoke the license of any person upon its determination that the person:

(I.7) Drove a vehicle in this state when such person was under twenty-one years of age and when the amount of alcohol, as shown by analysis of the person's breath, subject to section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1, in such person's blood was at least 0.02 but not in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood at the time of driving or within two hours after driving. If the preponderance of the evidence establishes that such person consumed alcohol between the time that the person stopped driving and the time of testing, the preponderance of the evidence must also establish that the minimum 0.02 breath alcohol content was reached as a result of alcohol consumed before the person stopped driving.

(II) Refused to take or to complete, or to cooperate in the completing of, any test or tests of the person's blood, breath, saliva, or urine as required by section 42-4-1301 (7), 42-4-1301.1 (2), 18-3-106 (4), or 18-3-205 (4), C.R.S. ~~If a law enforcement officer requests a test under the provisions of section 42-4-1301 (7) (a) (II), the person must cooperate with the request such that the sample of blood or breath can be obtained within two hours of the person's driving.~~ **[Last sentence relocated to 42-4-1301.1 (2) (a) (II) and (2) (b) (II)]**

(IV) Drove a commercial motor vehicle in this state when such person was under twenty-one years of age and when the amount of alcohol in such person's blood, as shown by analysis of such person's breath, subject to section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1, was at least 0.02 but less than 0.04 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or any time thereafter.

(3)(a) Whenever a law enforcement officer has probable cause to believe that a person has violated section 42-4-1301 (2) or whenever a person refuses to take or to complete, or to cooperate with the completing of any test or tests of such person's blood, breath, saliva, or urine as required by section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1, the law enforcement officer having such probable cause or requesting such test or tests shall forward to the department an affidavit containing information relevant to legal issues and facts which must be considered by the department to legally determine if a person's driving privilege should be revoked as provided in subsection (2) of this section. The executive director of the department shall specify to law enforcement agencies the form of the affidavit, the types of information needed in the affidavit, and any additional documents or copies of documents needed by the department to make its determination in addition to the affidavit. The affidavit shall be dated, signed, and sworn to by the law enforcement officer under penalty of perjury, but need not be notarized or sworn to before any other person.

(5)(a)(I) Whenever a law enforcement officer requests a person to take any test or tests as required by section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1 and such person refuses to take or to complete or to cooperate in the completing of such test or tests or whenever such test results are available to the law enforcement officer and such tests show an alcohol concentration of 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood as shown by analysis of such person's blood or 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath as shown by analysis of such person's breath if the person is twenty-one years of age or older or, subject to section ~~42-4-1301 (7)~~ 42-4-1301.1, at least 0.02 but not in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath as shown by analysis of such person's breath if the person is under twenty-one years of age and when the person who is tested or who refuses to take or to complete or to cooperate in the completing of any test or tests is still available to the law enforcement officer, the officer, acting on behalf of the department, shall serve the notice of revocation

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

personally on such person.

(II) Whenever a law enforcement officer requests a person who is under twenty-one years of age to take any test or tests as required by section ~~42-4-1301(7)~~ 42-4-1301.1 and such person refuses to take or to complete or to cooperate in the completing of such test or tests or whenever such test results are available to the law enforcement officer and such tests show an alcohol concentration in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood as shown by analysis of such person's blood or in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath as shown by analysis of such person's breath and when the person who is tested or who refuses to take or to complete or to cooperate in the completing of any test or tests is still available to the law enforcement officer, the officer, acting on behalf of the department, shall serve the notice of revocation personally on such person.

(7) (c) (II) If the person was determined to be in violation of subparagraph (I) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section and the person had a blood alcohol level, as shown by analysis of such person's blood or breath, that was 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving; or if the person's driving record otherwise indicates a designation as a persistent drunk driver as defined in section 42-1-102 (68.5), the department shall require such person to complete a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3 before driving privileges may be restored.

(III) If the total period of license restraint under this paragraph (c) is not sufficient to allow for the completion of level II alcohol and drug education and treatment, or the documentation of completion of such education and treatment is incomplete at the time of reinstatement, proof of current enrollment in a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3, on a form approved by the department shall be filed with the department.

(9) (c) (I) Where a license is revoked under subparagraph (I), (I.5), or (I.7) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section, the sole issue at the hearing shall be whether, by a preponderance of the evidence, the person drove a vehicle in this state when the amount of alcohol, as shown by analysis of the person's blood or breath, in such person's blood was 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.10 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving if the person was twenty-one years of age or older at the time of driving the vehicle or, subject to section ~~42-4-1301(7)~~ 42-4-1301.1, at least 0.02 but not in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving if the person was under twenty-one years of age at the time of driving the vehicle, or in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or in excess of 0.05 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving if the person was under twenty-one years of age at the time of driving the vehicle. If the preponderance of the evidence establishes that such person consumed alcohol between the time that the person stopped driving and the time that testing occurred, the preponderance of the evidence must also establish that the minimum 0.10 blood or breath alcohol content required in subparagraph (I) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section, the minimum 0.05 blood or breath alcohol content required in subparagraph (I.5) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section, or the minimum 0.02 breath alcohol content required in subparagraph (I.7) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section was reached as a result of alcohol consumed before the person stopped driving; or, where a license is revoked under subparagraph (II) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section, whether the person refused to take or to complete or to cooperate in the completing of any test or tests of the person's blood, breath, saliva, or urine as required by section ~~42-4-1301(7)~~ 42-4-1301.1. If the presiding hearing officer finds the affirmative of the issue, the revocation order shall be sustained. If the presiding hearing officer finds the

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

negative of the issue, the revocation order shall be rescinded.

(III) Where a license is revoked under subparagraph (III) or subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of this section, the sole issue at the hearing shall be whether, by a preponderance of the evidence, the person drove a commercial motor vehicle in this state when the amount of alcohol, as shown by analysis of the person's blood or breath, in such person's blood was 0.04 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.04 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or anytime thereafter for a person twenty-one years of age or older or, subject to section ~~42-4-1301~~ (~~7~~) 42-4-1301.1, 0.02 but less than 0.04 grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or anytime thereafter for a person under twenty-one years of age, or 0.04 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.04 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or anytime thereafter for a person under twenty-one years of age, if the preponderance of the evidence establishes that such person did not consume any alcohol between the time of driving and the time of testing. If the presiding hearing officer finds the affirmative of the issue, the revocation order shall be sustained. If the presiding hearing officer finds the negative of the issue, the revocation order shall be rescinded.

SECTION 7. 16-11-501 (2) (j), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11-501. Judgment for costs and fines. (2) The costs assessed pursuant to subsection (1) of this section or section 16-18-101 may include:

(j) On proper motion of the prosecuting attorney and at the discretion of the court, any other reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the prosecuting attorney or law enforcement agency ~~which~~ THAT are directly the result of the prosecution of the defendant, including the costs resulting from the collection and analysis of any chemical test upon the defendant pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301~~ 42-4-1301.1, C.R.S., which costs shall be reimbursed by the defendant directly to the law enforcement agency ~~which~~ THAT performed such chemical tests;

SECTION 8. 16-11.5-103 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-11.5-103. Substance abuse assessment required - convicted felons - controlled substance offenders. (2) Each person convicted of a misdemeanor or petty offense pursuant to article 18 of title 18, C.R.S., committed on or after July 1, 1992, shall be required to submit to an alcohol and drug evaluation pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301~~ 42-4-1301.3, C.R.S. The court shall order such person to comply with the recommendations of such evaluation. If such person is sentenced to probation, such person shall be ordered to comply with the recommendations as a condition of probation at such person's own expense, unless such person is indigent. If such person is not sentenced to probation, such person shall be ordered to comply with the recommendations as a part of the sentence imposed at such person's own expense, unless such person is indigent.

SECTION 9. 24-1-120 (6) (d), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

24-1-120. Department of human services - creation. (6) The department shall consist of the following divisions:

(d) The division of alcohol and drug abuse, created pursuant to part 1 of article 1 of title 25, C.R.S. The division of alcohol and drug abuse and its powers, duties, and functions, including the powers, duties, and functions relating to the alcohol and drug driving safety program specified in section ~~42-4-1301~~ (~~10~~) 42-4-1301.3, C.R.S., are transferred by a **type 2** transfer to the department of human services.

SECTION 10. 25-1-306 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

25-1-306. Standards for public and private treatment facilities - fees - enforcement procedures - penalties. (1) In accordance with the provisions of this part 3, the division shall establish standards for approved treatment facilities that receive state funds. Such standards must be met for a treatment facility to be approved as a public or private treatment facility. The division shall fix the fees to be charged for the required inspections. The fees that are charged to approved treatment facilities that provide level I and level II programs as provided in section ~~42-4-1301(10)(c)~~ 42-4-1301.3 (3) (c), C.R.S., shall be transmitted to the state treasurer, who shall credit the fees to the alcohol and drug driving safety program fund created in section ~~42-4-1301(10)(d)~~ 42-4-1301.3 (4) (a), C.R.S. The standards may concern only the health standards to be met and standards of treatment to be afforded patients and shall reflect the success criteria established by the general assembly.

SECTION 11. 25-1-1102 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

25-1-1102. Standards for public and private treatment facilities - fees - enforcement procedures - penalties. (1) In accordance with the provisions of this part 11, the division shall establish standards for approved treatment facilities that receive state funds. Such standards must be met for a treatment facility to be approved as a public or private treatment facility. The division shall fix the fees to be charged for the required inspections. The fees that are charged to approved treatment facilities that provide level I and level II programs as provided in section ~~42-4-1301(10)(c)~~ 42-4-1301.3 (3) (c), C.R.S., shall be transmitted to the state treasurer, who shall credit the fees to the alcohol and drug driving safety program fund created in section ~~42-4-1301(10)(d)~~ 42-4-1301.3 (4) (a), C.R.S. The standards may concern only the health standards to be met and standards of treatment to be afforded patients and shall reflect the success criteria established by the general assembly.

SECTION 12. 33-13-108.1 (12) (e) and (12) (f), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

33-13-108.1. Operating a motorboat or sailboat while under the influence. (12) (e) For the purposes of this subsection (12), "useful public service" shall have the same meaning as that set forth in section ~~42-4-1301(9)(i)~~ 42-4-1301.4 (2) (a), C.R.S., and the useful public service program authorized therein shall be utilized for the purposes of this subsection (12). An offender sentenced to such useful public service program or to such work assignments shall complete the same within the time established by the court. In addition to any other penalties, fines, fees, or costs prescribed in this section, the court shall assess an amount not to exceed the amount established in section ~~42-4-1301(9)(i)~~ 42-4-1301.4, C.R.S., upon any person required to perform useful public service. Such amount shall be used only to pay for the costs authorized in section ~~42-4-1301(9)(i)~~ 42-4-1301.4, C.R.S.

(f) For the purposes of this subsection (12), "alcohol and drug driving safety education or treatment" shall have the same meaning as that set forth in section ~~42-4-1301(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3 (3) (c) (IV), C.R.S., and the alcohol and drug driving safety program and the presentence alcohol and drug evaluations authorized therein shall be utilized for the purposes of this subsection (12). The presentence alcohol and drug evaluation shall be conducted on all persons convicted of a violation of subsection (1) of this section; except that this requirement shall not apply to persons who are not residents of Colorado at the time of sentencing. Any defendant sentenced to level I or level II education or treatment programs shall be instructed by the court to meet all financial obligations of such programs. If such financial obligations are not met, the sentencing court shall be notified for the purpose of collection or review and further action on the defendant's sentence. In addition to any other penalties, fines, fees, or costs prescribed in this section, the court shall assess an amount, not to exceed the amount established in section ~~42-4-1301(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3, C.R.S., upon any person convicted of a violation of subsection (1) of this section. Such amount shall be used only to pay for the costs authorized in section ~~42-4-1301(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3, C.R.S. The court shall consider the alcohol and drug evaluation prior to sentencing. The provisions of this paragraph (f) are

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

also applicable to any defendant who receives a deferred prosecution in accordance with section 16-7-401, C.R.S., or who receives a deferred sentence in accordance with section 16-7-403, C.R.S.

SECTION 13. 41-2-102 (7) (h) and (8), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

41-2-102. Operating an aircraft under the influence - operating an aircraft with excessive alcoholic content - tests - penalties - useful public service program. (7) (h) The provisions of section ~~42-4-1301 (9)~~ ~~(i)~~ 42-4-1301.4, C.R.S., shall apply to this article.

(8) The division of alcohol and drug abuse in the department of human services shall provide presentence alcohol and drug evaluations on all persons convicted of a violation of subsection (1) or (2) of this section, in the same manner as described in section ~~42-4-1301 (10)~~ 42-4-1301.3, C.R.S.

SECTION 14. 42-1-217 (1) (c), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-1-217. Disposition of fines and surcharges. (1) All judges, clerks of a court of record, or other officers imposing or receiving fines, penalties, or forfeitures, except those moneys received pursuant to sections 42-4-313 (3), 42-4-413, 42-4-1701 (5) (a), 42-8-105, and 42-8-106, collected pursuant to or as a result of a conviction of any persons for a violation of any of the provisions of articles 1 to 4 (except part 3 of article 2) of this title, shall transmit, within ten days from the date of receipt of any such fine, penalty, or forfeiture, all such moneys so collected in the following manner:

(c) Any other provision of law notwithstanding, all moneys collected pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301 (10)~~ 42-1-1301.3 shall be transmitted to the state treasurer to be credited to the account of the alcohol and drug driving safety program fund.

SECTION 15. 42-2-122 (1) (i), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-2-122. Department may cancel license - limited license for physical or mental limitations. (1) The department has the authority to cancel, deny, or deny the reissuance of any driver's or minor driver's license upon determining that the licensee was not entitled to the issuance thereof for any of the following reasons:

(i) Failure of the person to complete a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301 (10)~~ 42-4-1301.3, as required by section 42-2-126 (7) or 42-2-132 (2) (a) (II). Such failure shall be documented pursuant to section 42-2-144.

SECTION 16. 42-2-125 (1) (i), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-2-125. Mandatory revocation of license and permit. (1) The department shall immediately revoke the license or permit of any driver or minor driver upon receiving a record showing that such driver has:

(i) Been convicted of any offense provided for in section 42-4-1301 (1) or (2) (a) and has two previous convictions of any of such offenses. The license of any driver shall be revoked for an indefinite period and shall only be reissued upon proof to the department that said driver has completed a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301 (10)~~ 42-4-1301.3 and that said driver has demonstrated knowledge of the laws and driving ability through the regular motor vehicle testing process. In no event shall such license be reissued in less than two years.

SECTION 17. 42-2-132 (2) (a) (II) and (2) (a) (III), Colorado

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

42-2-132. Period of suspension or revocation.
 (2) (a) (II) (A) Following the period of revocation set forth in this subsection (2), the department shall not issue a new license unless and until it is satisfied that such person has demonstrated knowledge of the laws and driving ability through the appropriate motor vehicle testing process and that such person whose license was revoked pursuant to section 42-2-125 for an alcohol- or drug-related driving offense has completed not less than a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301-(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3.

(B) If the person was determined to be in violation of section 42-2-126 (2) (a) (I) and the person had a blood alcohol level, as shown by analysis of such person's blood or breath, that was 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per one hundred milliliters of blood or 0.20 or more grams of alcohol per two hundred ten liters of breath at the time of driving or within two hours after driving; or if the person's driving record otherwise indicates a designation as a persistent drunk driver as defined in section 42-1-102 (68.5), the department shall require such person to complete a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301-(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3.

(C) If the total period of license restraint under this subparagraph (II) is not sufficient to allow for the completion of level II alcohol and drug education and treatment, or the documentation of completion of such education and treatment is incomplete at the time of reinstatement, proof of current enrollment in a level II alcohol and drug education and treatment program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301-(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3, on a form approved by the department shall be filed with the department.

(III) In the case of a minor driver or a provisional driver whose license has been revoked as a result of one conviction for any offense provided for in section 42-4-1301 (1) or (2), the minor driver or provisional driver, unless otherwise required after an evaluation made by an alcohol and drug evaluation specialist certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse, must complete a level I alcohol and drug education program certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301-(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3.

SECTION 18. 42-2-144 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-2-144. Reporting by certified level II alcohol and drug education and treatment providers - notice of administrative remedies against a driver's license - rules. (1) The department shall require all providers of level II alcohol and drug education and treatment programs certified by the division of alcohol and drug abuse pursuant to section ~~42-4-1301-(10)~~ 42-4-1301.3 to provide quarterly reports to the department about each person who is enrolled and who has filed proof of such enrollment with the department as required by section 42-2-126 (7) (c) (III).

SECTION 19. 42-3-130.5, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-3-130.5. Persistent drunk driver cash fund - programs to deter persistent drunk drivers. There is hereby created in the state treasury the persistent drunk driver cash fund, which shall be composed of moneys collected for penalty surcharges under section 42-4-1301 ~~(9)~~ ~~(g)~~ ~~(H)~~ (7) (d) (II). The moneys in such fund are subject to annual appropriation by the general assembly to pay the costs incurred by the department regarding persistent drunk drivers under the provisions of sections 42-2-126 (2.5) and 42-7-406 (1.5), to pay for costs incurred by the department for computer programing changes related to treatment compliance for persistent drunk drivers pursuant to section 42-2-144, and to support programs that are intended to deter persistent drunk driving or intended to educate the public, with particular emphasis on the education

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

SB02-057

of young drivers, regarding the dangers of persistent drunk driving. The departments of transportation, revenue, and human services shall coordinate programs intended to accomplish such goals.

SECTION 20. The introductory portion to 42-4-1701 (3) (a) (II) (A), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-4-1701. Traffic offenses and infractions classified - penalties - penalty and surcharge schedule. (3) (a) (II) (A) Except as provided in subsections (4) and (5) of this section and in ~~section~~ SECTIONS 42-4-1301 ~~(9)~~ (7), 42-4-1301.2 (2), 42-4-1301.3, AND 42-4-1301.4, misdemeanor traffic offenses are divided into two classes which are distinguished from one another by the following penalties which are authorized upon conviction:

SECTION 21. Effective date - applicability. This act shall take effect July 1, 2002, and shall apply to offenses committed on or after said date.

SECTION 22. Safety clause. The general assembly hereby finds, determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety. "

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

February 5, 2002

Mr. President:

The House has passed on Third Reading and transmitted to the Revisor of Statutes HB02-1177,1132.

The House has passed on Third Reading and transmitted to the Revisor of Statutes HB02-1154, amended as printed in House Journal, February 1, page 281. HB02-1179, amended as printed in House Journal, February 4, page 294. HB02-1093, amended as printed in House Journal, February 4, page 295. HB02-1135, amended as printed in House Journal, February 4, page 297.

On motion of Senator Thiebaut, and with a majority of those elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the Senate proceeded out of order for Consideration of Governor's Appointments.

On motion of Senator Thiebaut, and with a majority of those elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the balance of the calendar of Governor's Appointments Calendar, was laid over until Monday, February 11, retaining its place on the calendar.

- Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority
- Financial Services Board
- State Board of Equalization
- Juvenile Parole Board

On motion of Senator Thiebaut, and with a majority of those elected to the Senate having voted in the affirmative, the balance of the calendar of Tuesday, February 5, was laid over until Wednesday, February 6, retaining its place on the calendar.

Notice of Intent to Reconsider: **SB02-030.**
General Orders--Second Reading of Bills: **SB02-044, SB02-069, SB02-041, SCR02-002, SB02-095, SCR02-001, SB02-055, SB02-102, SB02-049, SB02-007, SB02-036, SB02-064, HB02-1007, SB02-038, SB02-015, SB02-091, SB02-043, SB02-092, HB02-1033, HB02-1008, SB02-051, SB02-076.**
Consideration of Resolutions: **HJR02-1003, SR02-005, HJR02-1009.**

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72

On motion of Senator Thiebaut, the Senate adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Wednesday,
February 6, 2002.

Approved:

Stan Matsunaka
President of the Senate

Attest:

Karen Goldman
Secretary of the Senate

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14